
1 
 

BLET REVISION COMMITTEE MEETING 
DOC OSDT 

Apex, NC 
January 14, 2011 

 
 
Jennifer Fisher called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was held at the Department 
of Correction, Office of Staff Development and Training, Apex, NC. Carolyn Holland called the 
roll. 
 
Members Present: 
Nancy Bennett 
Alfred Ellis 
Jason Godwin 
Wrenn Johnson 
Wayne Lamm 
Jeffrey Robinson 
Steve Warren 
 
Ex-Officio Members Present: 
Mark Dearry, Criminal Justice Standards Division 
Autumn Hanna, Sheriffs’ Standards Division 
Joy Strickland, NC Department of Justice 
 
Staff Present: 
Jennifer Fisher, NC Justice Academy 
Carolyn Holland, NC Justice Academy 
Mark Strickland, NC Justice Academy 
Chet Jernigan, NC Justice Academy 
Kristi Jernigan, NC Justice Academy 
Pam Pope, Criminal Justice Standards Division 
 
Visitors Present: 
Donna Bickford, Carolina Women’s Center, UNC-CH 
Rachel Braver, Legal Aid of North Carolina 
Lisa Mayhew, Chief Medical Examiner’s Office 
Tracy McPherson, NC Community College System 
Nathan Mizell, Nash Community College  
Frank Scaletti, NC Community College System 
 
Jennifer introduced herself and stated how she looked forward to chairing the Revision 
Committee. She asked that each member introduce themselves.  
 
Jennifer asked for approval or correction of the July 9, 2010 meeting minutes. Wayne Lamm 
made the motion to approve the minutes. Jeff Robinson seconded. The motion was approved. 
 



2 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
Human Trafficking 
 
Jennifer stated members had been mailed the Human Trafficking video and she asked for 
approval to include the video with the new “Human Trafficking” block of instruction. 
 
Steve Warren made a motion to approve the Human Trafficking video for the new block titled 
“Human Trafficking.” Wayne Lamm seconded. The motion was approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Member Appointment 
 
Jennifer announced that Sgt. Alfred Ellis of the Fayetteville Police Department replaced the 
vacant membership once held by Patrick O’Toole. Mr. O’Toole resigned due to a reassignment 
at his agency. 
 
Mark Strickland explained that some members’ terms were to expire this past year and they were 
asked if they wished to continue to serve on the committee. When vacancies occur, the Director 
of the Justice Academy chooses a replacement, taking into consideration maintaining a variety of 
agencies and geographical locations for committee membership. 
 
BLET Edits 
 
Mark Strickland stated that edits to BLET began last September and with the help of Bob Yow, 
the entire BLET curriculum was reviewed. Committee members were given the opportunity to 
review all the blocks affected by the review and make comments/recommendations. Mark 
presented the recommended edits for BLET by providing a document with edits for each lesson 
plan. 
 
As Mark went through each topic, various notations were made. Jennifer stated that a new 
handout would be prepared for the “Domestic Violence Response” block since the information in 
the original handout is outdated. Jason Godwin recommended checking PowerPoint slides with 
each lesson plan to ensure the titles are the same.  
 
Mark asked for clarification concerning a paragraph in the “Preparing for Court and Testifying in 
Court” lesson plan. It occurs on page 20 and pertains to officers making mistakes during their 
testimony. Members suggested deleting the paragraph altogether. Mark asked for input 
concerning deletion of material on page 25 of this same block of instruction. The paragraph 
refers to officers discussing cases with defense attorneys prior to trial. Sgt. Ellis questioned 
removal of the material altogether; Joy Strickland stated perhaps the paragraph could be 
rewritten to clarify. Mark and Joy will rewrite the information in lieu of deleting it. 
 
The suggestion to remove all “bad” words and profanity in all BLET lesson plans was discussed. 
Committee members decided to leave the information in the outlines since it portrays more 
realistic situations that officers encounter. 



3 
 

 
Tracy McPherson made a suggestion for the “Crowd Management” edit on page 20--add the 
word “media” so that the sentence reads, “With today’s live media coverage, rumors and police 
action or in-action will influence the situations much more quickly.” Members agreed with the 
suggestion. 
 
Jason Godwin recommended changing the sentence in the “Crowd Management” outline on page 20 that 
reads:  “Rumors often follow controversial encounters between a member of a minority group and a white 
police officer.” He suggested changing it to read: “Rumors often follow controversial encounters between 
a member of the public and an officer of a different culture.”  Members agreed with the suggestion.  
 
Steve Warren made a motion to accept all these edits to the BLET curriculum. Jeff Robinson 
seconded. The motion was approved. 
 
Mark stated that Bob Yow in the past had been given the authority to make minor edits to the 
curriculum without bringing them before the Committee. He asked if Committee members would 
give Jennifer Fisher the same authority. 
 
Jeff Robinson made a motion to authorize Jennifer Fisher to make minor revisions/edits to the 
BLET curriculum. Jason Godwin seconded. The motion was approved. 
 
NC Child Fatality 
 
Lisa Mayhew presented on behalf of the Office of the Chief Medical Examiner and the NC Child 
Fatality Prevention Task Force. She referred Committee members to the handout which she 
provided. The handout includes components of the state child death investigation protocol 
involving the role of law enforcement and various statutes already in place concerning this issue. 
The task force recommends some additions/changes to the BLET curriculum to aid in child death 
investigations. Either the “Juvenile Law” or “Criminal Investigations” block would be 
appropriate topics to include the material. 
 
Committee members felt “Criminal Investigations” would be the best location for child death 
investigation information. Several members thought this information does require special 
attention and should be included in BLET. Sgt. Ellis mentioned the topic could be included in in-
service training. 
 
After more discussion, a decision was made to include some information in “Criminal 
Investigations” and Jennifer will work with Lisa in writing the curriculum. The information will 
be presented at the next meeting. 
 
National Alliance on Mental Illness 
 
Jennifer referred members to the memorandum from Deby Dihoff, Executive Director of 
National Alliance on Mental Illness in North Carolina. Ms. Dihoff is forming a committee to 
review the mental illness or mental retardation block in BLET. Composition of the committee is 
also provided in the memorandum from Ms. Dihoff. They have not met at this time and Jennifer 
will keep the BLET Revision Committee updated. 



4 
 

 
Jeff Robinson recommended trying to keep this training within the current hours and in-service 
training should be an option for additional training. Wayne Lamm noted the committee make-up 
doesn’t include many law enforcement personnel and suggested that Jennifer recommend to Ms. 
Dihoff that they be added. 
 
Legal Counsel’s Report 
 
Joy Strickland reported that she was changing roles in the Attorney General’s Office and would 
be representing the SBI division. She would no longer be able to serve on the Committee and 
really appreciated the opportunity to serve. Her position has not been filled yet, but she would 
still be available to assist if needed. 
 
Mark Strickland thanked Joy for her dedication and hard work. 
 
Criminal Justice Standards Division Report 
 
Mark Dearry stated the Course Management Guide would be revised. He expressed a need to 
ensure both the Guide and lesson plans reflect the same requirements. 
 
Jason Godwin suggested keeping the required equipment as general as possible. Jeff Robinson 
suggested having one list of all the required equipment available for school directors. 
 
Sheriffs’ Standards Division Report 
 
Autumn Hanna reported that the DOCC final exam was being revised using block testing and 
would be effective in August 2011.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Wayne Lamm noted that the old Administrative Code stated individuals must be 20 years of age 
to be admitted to BLET whereas the new Administrative Code states the age as 18 years of age. 
The “Course Orientation” for BLET should be corrected to reflect the change. 
 
Joy stated that the statute had been changed to allow the Commission to set the age to over 18 
years of age, but the Code has to be updated. Pam Pope stated that the proposed change has gone 
to rules. 
 
Jennifer reported that the Academy is working on reviewing and replacing some videos in 
BLET. It will be an on-going process. Mark Strickland emphasized the need to replace vendor 
videos with NCJA-produced videos to compensate when vendors/producers are not longer in 
business or the videos are no longer available for purchase. Wayne Lamm mentioned that in the 
past these videos that become unavailable are then considered “optional” and so noted in the 
lesson plan. 
 



5 
 

Mark Dearry stated that some problems have occurred with on-line training and testing 
problems. Making these websites secure will be an issue in the future because these problems are 
becoming more prevalent. 
 
Jeff Robinson stated there are programs available to guard against copying and printing tests. He 
does not favor abandoning this technology, but instead work towards eliminating the threat of 
cheating. On-line training is a very cost-saving type of training for agencies. 
 
Mark Dearry and Pam reassured members there is not a move to eliminate on-line training. They 
wanted to bring this issue to the attention of Committee members and is being mentioned “for 
information only” purposes. 
 
Jeff Robinson mentioned that communicating these issues statewide could help resolve some 
problems. Tracy McPherson stated that in the past the word gets around about problems, but now 
there is a need for more “structured” communication (for example, a session at the School 
Directors’ conference). More networking is needed to relay some of these problems to school 
directors and other staff. 
 
Next Meeting 
 
Jennifer proposed setting dates for the next three Committee meetings. The dates/locations 
selected are: 
 
April 15, 2011, Morganton 
July 29, 2011, Apex 
October 14, 2011, Morehead City 
 
Meetings will begin at 10 a.m. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:45 a.m. 


